
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

April 25, 2016 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Pastor Scott Guffin, Liberty Park Baptist Church 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Presentation – March 9, 2016 Incident Responder Commendation 
7. Presentation – Joan Wright – Child Care Resources 
8. Presentation – John Norris – A Police Department Tribute 
9. City Manager’s Report 
10. Councilors’ Reports 
11. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Asst. City Treasurer 
12. Approval of Minutes – April 11, 2016 (Regular Meeting) and April 18, 2016 (Special 

Meeting)  

Old Business  

13. Ordinance Number 2652 – An Ordinance Establishing Policy And Protocols To Manage 
Stray, Feral Or Abandoned Cats And Felines And To Prescribe Penalties For Violation 
Thereof 

14. Resolution Number 4821 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4598 And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Complete All Actions Necessary To Secure Payment 
For Construction Of The New City Hall Facility Located At 1032 Montgomery Highway 

New Business  

15. Ordinance Number 2653 – Annual Jefferson County Tax Levy 
16. Ordinance Number 2654 – Annual Shelby County Tax Levy 
17. Resolution Number 4825 – Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills Board Of 

Education 
18. Resolution Number 4817-A – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4817 – A 

Resolution Approving An Additional $24,000 For Mowing Of The Former Altadena 
Valley Country Club 



19. Resolution Number 4822 – A Resolution Establishing The Use Of Electronic Vote 
Counting Devices For Municipal Elections 

20. Resolution Number 4823 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property   

21. Resolution Number 4824 – A Resolution Granting An Overhead Power Easement For 
Alabama Power On The Property Located At 501 Montgomery Highway 

22. Resolution Number 4826 – A Resolution initiating the rezoning of the property located at 
1280 Montgomery Highway from Unzoned to VH B-2 

23. Resolution Number 4827 – A Resolution Initiating A Conditional Use Approval For 
Major Mechanical On A Portion Of Lot 1, Vestavia Hills Sports Park For Construction 
Of A City Fleet Operations Facility 

24. Resolution Number 4828 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With The Alabama Department Of Transportation For Project 
Number ACAA59494-ATRP(006); ATRIP #37-03-33 

25. Resolution Number 4829 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With The Alabama Department Of Transportation For Project 
Cmaq-7030(600), Project Reference Number 100057174; Construction Project For 
Sidewalks Along Portions Of Massey Road, Columbiana Road And Montgomery 
Highway 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

26. Resolution Number 4830 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A 
Proposal To Design A Motor Scout Building For The City Of Vestavia Hills Police 
Department 

27. Resolution Number 4831 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A 
Proposal To Design A Municipal Fleet Operations Facility At Lot 1, Vestavia Sports Park 
And Renovation Of Current Park Maintenance Facility At Wald Park 

28. Citizens Comments 
29. Executive Session 
30. Motion For Adjournment 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Joan Wright <jwright@ccr-bhm.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 4:17 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: Present to City Council

Hi Beckie, 
 
I welcome the opportunity to be on the agenda for Monday’s City Council Meeting, 4/25 at 5PM. 
 
The purpose is to express our gratitude for City of Vestavia Hills’ generous, continued support of the mission of our 
agency. 
 
Here’s a link to our most recent annual report that I will reference in my remarks.  
 
Please confirm if this can be arranged. 
 
Thank you kindly, 
 
Joan Wright 
Executive Director 
Childcare Resources 
244 West Valley Avenue, Suite 200 
Birmingham, AL 35209‐3616 
O: 205‐945‐0018 ext. 301 
F:  205‐945‐0039 
C:  205‐908‐7939 
E:  jwright@ccr‐bhm.org 
W: www.ccr‐bhm.org 
 
Childcare Resources...We Make Quality Child Care Happen! 
 

                 
 
 
 
 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: John Norris <norrisa_j@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 4:31 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Butch Zaragoza
Subject: A Vestavia Police Department Tribute

Rebecca; 
 
Reference my conversation with you yesterday, please put me on the agenda for the next 5 P.M. City 
Council Meeting which takes place on 4/25.. 
 
My subject will be: A Vestavia Police Department Tribute 
 
Thank you, 
Jack Norris 205-423-5893 
 
C/c Chief Rary: Thank you for your time. I have made some changes to the letter as a result of our 
conversation. The new format will be sent to you on Wednesday.......Please send me a list of some 
other community services (other than Mama Kitty) so I can mention the information next Monday.  
C/c Mayor Zaragoza: Please let me know if you any suggestions after you read the final draft 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 11, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Assistant Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 
 Invocation was given by Marvin Green, Assistant Fire Chief, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegience led by Boy Scouts Josh Kaiser, Carson Hughes, Riley Howerton 
and Corbin Menrer. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 
 

• Mr. Pierce recognized Scott Perry and Zack Jones attending the meeting 
representing the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce. 

• Mr. Henley read the final listing for the Board of Education applications.  
Interviews will be held April 20, 2016 beginning at 7:30 AM:  Steve Bendall, 
Charlie Shah, Jon Vickers, Lisa Baker, Pat Dewees, Celia Anthony, Kimberly 
Cook, Allison Maners, Thomas Parchman and Lloyd Peeples. 

• The Mayor stated that the Art in the Hills was held last weekend at the City Hall. 
He thanked the volunteers as well as the committee for the event. 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 2 
 

• Mr. Ammons stated that he spoke to a group from the former Soviet Union.  It 
was an interesting meeting and the first time he has spoken through a translator. 

• Mr. Ammons stated that this City Hall was constructed to be the City’s Center 
and would be used for many community gatherings and he looks forward to these 
events. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a Proclamation designating April 26, 2016 as a “Day of 
Prayer and Thanksgiving.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation.  The Mayor stated that 
this is the 26th annual Mayor’s Prayer Breakfast at the Vestavia Country Club and invited 
everyone to attend. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes showed renderings of the newly repaired pool at Wald Park.  The 
resurfacing job is complete and there are no leaks in the pool.  The project came 
in right on budget and timing. 

• The City has a cash emergency reserve fund of $9.4 million or 100 days of 
operating expenses.  He stated that the Finance Director “shops” the best deals for 
interest on this fund.  In reviewing a 24-month certificate of deposit, Southpoint 
Bank came back with the best interest rate of 1.26%.  Mr. Turner stated that they 
invited more than 18 banks to respond to the request and the best was Southpoint 
Bank. 

• Mr. Downes gave an update on the progress of the Wald Park Planning 
Committee. They have been gathering site data and site visits from the various 
consultants that the Council has hired to assist in this endeavor. 

 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Henley asked if the line of credit is sought from that CD collateral, would it 
affect the certificate at all.  Mr. Turner stated that there would be no affect. 

• Mr. Downes explained that tonight is the 2nd try toward recording the meeting. 
• Mr. Pierce stated that a former Vestavia Hills student tried in the Master’s 

recently and represented the City very well. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of March 28, 2016 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of March 28, 2016 
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4817 
 
Resolution Number 4817 – A Resolution Appropriating An Additional $24,000 To 

The Existing Turf Management Agreement For Mowing Of Park 
Properties (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4817 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution would allow the City’s current vendor 
to mow the former AVCC which wasn’t included on the bid that was accepted a few 
months ago.  Now that the property is owned by the City, the responsibility to mow has 
become apparent.  The fee to cut this acreage for the remainder of the budget year comes 
to $24,000. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the original email said $2,000 per cut.  Mr. Downes stated 
they were able to negotiate it further to $1,750 per cut. 
 
 Mr. Sharp asked about some of the digging that has occurred on the site. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that some erosion control measures will soon be installed. 
 
 Mr. Henley indicated this is general fund.   
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to 
address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4818 
 
Resolution Number 4818 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Preventative And 

Total Maintenance Of HVAC Units In City-Owned Facilities And 
Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To Execute An 
Agreement For Said Services 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4818 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is an acceptance for preventative and total 
maintenance of HVAC for all city-owned facilities; an invitation to bid was sent to allow 
a centralized method of handling all HVAC needs.  The City received 6 bid responses 
and, after analysis, recommendation to accept the response of H&M Mechanical was 
made by the Public Services Director.  He explained the current budget showing that the 
funding for the remainder of the year is covered by what is in the current budget. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that he is a proponent of this and he states the contract is only 
for one year and can be terminated. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the intent of the bid was a 3-year term. 
 
 Mr. Davis stated that they would like a longer contract but have every intention to 
renew this for the 3-year period. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked if this would solve issues like the coils at the library.  Mr. 
Downes stated that they would fall under this agreement. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this begins with an equipment inspection and any 
immediate detected failures would have to be resolved before the agreement is effective. 
 
 Mr. Henley indicated that it seems to be aggressive pricing. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that they are familiar with the systems they installed here and 
may be bid aggressively because of that. 
 
 Mr. Boone recommended that the indemnity clauses need to be removed and that 
the agreement should have 3-year terms. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor Pro-
Tem closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 5 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4819 
 
Resolution Number 4819 - A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The 
City Manager To Abate Said Nuisance 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4819 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is an abatement request by the Code Enforcement 
Officer, Jimmy Coleman. 
 
 Officer Coleman stated that the request is 1600 Gentilly Drive.  He stated that he 
has been working with the owner for several months to get the property cleaned up.  He 
indicated it has extremely overgrown bushes.  This past weekend he did a lot of work and 
there are a few things that need to be corrected but he has made progress. 
 
 Mr. Ammons asked for a percentage of what has been corrected and what he still 
needs to do.  
 
 Mr. Coleman stated that maybe just over 50% of what is needed has been done. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked if the citation has been issued. 
 
 Discussion ensued about postponing or giving additional time.  Mr. Coleman 
suggested 2 more weeks might give him enough time to get it accomplished, the nature of 
the complaints,  
 
 Charles Fletcher, 1600 Gentilly Drive, stated that Mr. Coleman has been a big 
help and that most of the problem seems to be centered on vines.  He stated that he thinks 
that the next 2 weeks he might could do more toward getting it addressed if the weather 
holds out. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to whether or not to postpone, why the situation occurred in 
the first place, the owner suffered from cancer over the past few years and he finally 
hired some help to address the situation. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that Section 3E of the City’s ordinance allows the Council to 
postpone this hearing to a certain date. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the City’s next meeting is on April 25 and asked if the 
work could be completed by then.  Mr. Fletcher stated that he would work with Mr. 
Coleman to try and get it addressed. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 6 
 

MOTION  Motion to amend the effective date of Resolution Number 4819 to April 
27, 2016 in order to allow the property owner two additional weeks to 
bring the property into compliance and failure to do so will approve the 
property abatement pursuant to Ordinance 2567 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows:  

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 Mr. Sharp reiterated that Mr. Coleman can hire the contractors to abate the 
nuisance if the property is not cleared in that 2-week extension. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  No one was present in regard to 
this issue.  The Mayor closed the public hearing. 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on Ordinance Number 2625. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on and Ordinance Number 2625 was by Mr. Henley and second was by 
Mr. Sharp.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2625 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2625 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this property has been on the market for several years and 
that this Ordinance was originally put in as a first read several months ago.  
Circumstances made further negotiations necessary so the item was pulled.  This is 
coming today with a purchase/sale agreement whereby Freddy’s would purchase the site 
for $1.2 million.  There are sanitary sewer issues that have been identified on site and the 
cost of these issues ranged from $50.000 to $70,000, so there is a provision that, at 
closing, a contract amount would be deducted from the purchase price.  In addition, there 
are other contingencies including rezoning, existing covenants in site and the ability for 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 7 
 

the City to take the existing public works operations to other facilities.  The goal for 
closing is early 2017. 
 
 The Mayor indicated that this was on as a first read a few months ago. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he sees no problems and recommended approval. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked if the timeline is good for allowing relocation of public works.  
Mr. Downes stated he does feel good about it. 
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the first Freddy’s location in Hoover at Lee Branch 
which opened 2 weeks ago.  Their 2nd location is being constructed in Tuscaloosa and this 
would be the third location; covenants on the property which expired in 2011; Freddy’s 
wants to be owner/operators in this location and that’ll encourage them to maintain 
tenants in the center they construct to maximize use of the site. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  No one was present in regard to 
this issue.  The Mayor closed the public hearing. 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on April 
25, 2016 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2652 – An Ordinance Establishing Policy And Protocols To 
Manage Stray, Feral Or Abandoned Cats And Felines And To Prescribe Penalties 
For Violation Thereof 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 Michael Epes, 133 21st Avenue NE, Centerpoint, stated that he was present 
representing St. John Lodge 57 under the auspices of the Most Worshipful Prince Hall 
Grand Lodge of Alabama and wanted to offer assistance to any civic activity that might 
be needed. 
 
 Susan Swartz, Mountain Brook, stated that she wanted to speak to the ordinance 
to be presented at the next meeting.  She stated that they are concerned citizens and some 
people have been taking care of these cat colonies for years and they feel it will have 
negative impact of the image on the City and the Humane Society. 



City Council Minutes 
 April 11, 2016 

Page 8 
 

 
 The Mayor stated that the City has had meetings on this and this ordinance is not 
something that is taken lightly; however, it will be open to a public hearing at the next 
meeting. 
 
 At 6:10 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Ammons.  
Meeting adjourned at 6:10 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
 April 18, 2016 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

APRIL 18, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Treasurer 

Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Steve Monk, City Legal Counsel 
Deloye Burrell, Planning & Zoning Comm.  

 
 Invocation was given by Melvin Turner, Finance Director, followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for immediate consideration 
and possible action of all items on the agenda. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent and immediate action of all items on the 

agenda was made by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley  Roll call 
vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
 April 18, 2016 

Page 2 
 

   Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4820 
 
Resolution Number 4820 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For The Purchase Of 1.2 
Acres, More Of Less, To Provide Access To And From Acton Road 
And Property Formerly Known As The Altadena Valley Country 
Club (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4820 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution will help the City with an alternate 
entrance to the recreational fields to be located on the old AVCC.  This was drafted by 
the City’s legal counsel, Steve Monk, and was accepted by the owners of the subject real 
estate.  With the Council’s approval, this will help to make this alternate entrance a 
reality.  He gave the background of the events which made a portion of the AVCC the 
property of the City to be developed into some passive parks.  Up until now, the property 
is only accessed by one roadway which meets Acton Road at a very narrow point and was 
a challenge to the nearby residential area for “cut thru” traffic.  In order to minimize the 
traffic, this alternate entrance was identified and this portion of property is needed in 
order to construct this alternate entrance.  He also explained the challenges to create this 
entrance because the property was part of a development contract of the larger property 
located to the west.  He also explained the reasoning within the contract which made it 
expire on April 20, 2016 and the difficulty of getting an extension with a member of the 
owning party being located overseas.  This Resolution will be the decision to allow the 
purchase and sale agreement in the amount of $495,000.  There will be another action 
required at a later date as part of the development agreement which will be the 
construction of the alternate entrance making the total cost near $1.5 million. 
 
 Mr. Monk stated that the provisions of this contract are short-lived. 
 
 Discussion ensued that the City was purchasing a portion of a 40 +/- acres of 
vacant property  and the property is located in the City of Hoover.  Mr. Downes stated 
they had to follow the strictest adherence for Hoover in order to estimate the cost of this 
proposed construction; continued use of the original access which has options including 
addition of deceleration/acceleration lanes, traffic flow through the residential 
neighborhood, and correcting the challenging turn at Acton Road which is extreme and 
leaves a lot unknown; permits and engineering required for construction of the alternate 
entrance, etc. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 18, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 The Mayor reiterated the timing of this entrance is essential to finalizing the deal 
because the deadline is April 20 and the terms were completed in negotiating the end of 
last week. 
 
 Mr. Downes concurred.  He stated that he specifically asked for an extension and 
was told it would not be granted. 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained the reasons why the City was searching for needed 
recreational space for the City which made the construction of these fields so attractive 
and to provide this alternate access is money well spent since this property was donated 
to the City. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Deloye Burrell, 3273 Farrington Wood Drive, stated this is a good thing. 
 
 Mike Gargus 3931 South River Circle, asked if the developer is going to be given 
access to this roadway and why he is not sharing in the cost. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that clearly the developer would benefit but the amount 
ultimately proposed is significantly different from the original.  All of these factors have 
been taken into consideration. 
 
 Randy Johnston, 2709 Altadena Lake Drive, asked the Council to proceed with 
this purchase and provide an alternate entrance to the fields.  He asked if there will be any 
park access from this direction. 
 
 The Mayor stated that there would be no back entrance. 
 
 Peggy Gargus, 3931 South River Circle, representing the Cahaba River Keeper, 
stated that they have requested information and are expressing concerns with stormwater 
runoff during this construction. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the City has made contact with Beth Stewart of the Cahaba 
River Society and will be working with her to take all actions possible to keep from 
having any runoff to the river. 
 
 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, asked about the configuration of the 
property line and if it’s in the City of Hoover.  He asked what Hoover will govern in this 
construction and what will Vestavia complete.  Mr. Downes explained that the City will 
construct the roadway to Hoover’s specifications and will be a part of the ultimate 
development agreement and would be maintained by the City.  The City has no 
obligation to building the roadway until the ultimate development agreement is 
completed. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 18, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on April 
25, 2016 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4821 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4598 
And Authorizing The City Manager To Complete All Actions Necessary To 
Secure Payment For Construction Of The New City Hall Facility Located At 
1032 Montgomery Highway 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 Deloye Burrell, 3273 Farrington Wood Drive, addressed the Council of the Green 
Valley Road/Crosshaven Drive intersection.  He stated that he is getting a lot of questions 
concerning this intersection, and asked about the City mitigating the traffic going from 
the Summit to Overton Road.  He asked that the City slow the traffic down, not speed it 
up.  He asked if there was any way to get a periodic update from the County on the 
progress of this intersection. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that he and the City Engineer discuss this every month for 
inclusion of turning lanes on the roadways of this intersection and communicate with the 
County.  Since this money is moving through ALDOT, we are at their mercy.  This is in 
the midst of ROW acquisition which follows the Uniform Relocation Act, which protects 
the property owners from the government unfairly seizing private property.  The County 
has engaged an appraiser which, alone, took a year to retain.  He is in the process of 
acquiring the property and this may take another year or two.  There is no way to put this 
out that it will be done by a “date certain” because the City is not in control. 
 
 Mr. Burrell asked about a problem with a property owner who is having heavy 
odors coming from a neighboring residence.  Mr. Downes asked him to refer the property 
owner to the Action Center. 
 
 At 5:53 PM, Mr. Henley made a motion to adjourn into the work session located 
in the Executive Conference room and was seconded by Mr. Ammons.  Meeting 
adjourned at 5:53 PM. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 April 18, 2016 

Page 5 
 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2652 
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2652 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING POLICY AND 
PROTOCOLS FOR THE MANAGEMENT, 
HARBORING AND/OR FEEDING OF STRAY, FERAL, 
OR ABANDONED CATS AND FELINES AND TO 
PRESCRIBE PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Purpose.  

The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish policies and protocols to manage stray, 

feral or abandoned cats in the City of Vestavia Hills, to authorize the humane trapping, 

collection, adoption and sterilization and/or disposal of said cats and to provide for penalties 

for violation thereof. 

 

Section 2.  Definitions.   

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation of this Ordinance: 

1. Cat:  The terms “stray cat,” “feral cat” or “abandoned cat” shall mean any 

domestic cat that is reasonably believed not to be owned or under the 

entrusted care of any person.  This shall include any animal that appears to be 

homeless, abandoned, non-socialized, undomesticated or uncared for based 

upon the behavior or physical condition of the cat and the absence of any 

collar, tag, microchip, or other means of identifying the name, address, or 

telephone number of the owner.  

2. Superannuated:  Incapacitated or disqualified for active duty by advanced 

age. 

3. Infirm:  Not physically or mentally strong, especially through age or illness. 

4. Glandered:  Affected by a contagious disease caused by bacteria and 

characterized by swellings beneath the jaw and a profuse mucous discharge 

from the nostrils. 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2652 
Page 2 

 
Section 3.  Specific Violations. 

a. Keeping or harboring:  It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or harbor at 

any place within the City any feral cat, regardless of the age or size of any 

such animal, and regardless of whether or not such animal was born and/or 

raised in captivity.  

b. Feeding:  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, it shall be unlawful 

for any person to knowingly feed, offer food, or in any manner provide food 

to any feral cat on private or public property within the City limits for the 

purpose of attracting or harboring such animals.   

 

Section 4. Exceptions. 

The provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to any of the following:   

a. Employees or agents of the City, county, state, and federal government or 

veterinarians who, in the course of their official duties, have feral cats in their custody 

or under their management; 

b. The provision of food to domesticated cats that are household pets and that are owned 

by or whose care and feeding have been entrusted to the person providing the food; 

c. The provision of food that is incidental to other lawful activities and that is not 

intended to attract feral cats as defined herein; and 

d. The provision of food in connection with the humane trapping of feral cats for the 

purposes of relocating said animals to nonresidential areas.  

 

Section 5.  Impoundment of stray, feral, or abandoned cats and felines.   

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this subsection is to authorize the humane trapping, 

collection, release, adoption and sterilization and/or disposal of feral cats that are 

reasonably believed not to be owned or under the care of any person and which, by 

virtue of such status, are deemed to represent an actual or potential threat to the 

health, safety, and welfare of the public.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent 

the City and its employees or agents from using reasonable discretion in discharging 

the functions and activities hereby authorized.  Nothing herein shall be interpreted or 

deemed to create or to impose on the City, its agents, employees, persons, or entities 



Ordinance Number 2652 
Page 3 

 
acting on behalf thereof any duty, standard of care, or liability to the public generally 

or to any member thereof with respect to the collection, care, or disposition of cats 

impounded under authority hereof.  

2. The City or its representatives, including the code enforcement official, animal 

control officer, or person serving in like capacity, or such persons or firms as may be 

designated or employed by the City or with whom the City may contract for such 

purposes, shall have the authority to trap or collect by humane means and impound 

any cat or member of the feline family that appears to be stray, abandoned, feral, or 

non-socialized, or uncared for based upon the behavior or physical condition of the 

cat, and the absence of any collar, tag, microchip, or other means of identifying the 

name, address, or telephone number of the owner of the cat. 

3. A cat that is trapped and impounded pursuant to Section 2 above, will be held for a 

minimum period of  seven (7) days pursuant to the provisions of Code of Alabama, 

1975 §3-7A-8 in which notice may be given to the owner, if known and/or to allow 

the owner to redeem said cat.  If the owner redeems the cat, in such instance, the 

owner shall pay the City or the City’s representative all costs associated with the 

impoundment including, but not limited to, boarding and required medical treatment. 

4.  If the impounded cat is not redeemed by its owner within the required seven (7) day 

detention period or, following the seven (7) day detention period, the City or its 

representative may offer the cat for adoption if the cat is deemed adoptable by 

reasonable means.   

5. Following the required seven (7) day detention period, the City or its representative 

may allow the cat to be released into the general area from which it was trapped 

subject to the following requirements: 

a. The cat is determined by reasonable means to be feral or undomesticated, but 

not suitable for adoption; and 

b. The cat is determined by reasonable means to be healthy and without disease 

or infection of any kind and sociable so as not to pose a danger to itself, a pet 

or a human; and 



Ordinance Number 2652 
Page 4 

 
c. The cat is sterilized pursuant to the sterilization requirements set forth in the 

Code of Alabama 1975 §3-9-2 and other state law governing such practices; 

and 

d. The cat is vaccinated for rabies; and 

e. The cat is marked with ear tags, a clipped ear, or other means to identify that 

said cat has been sterilized. 

6. The collection, care, and disposition of any impounded cat shall be subject to state 

law governing such practices, including but not limited to sterilization requirements 

set forth in the Code of Alabama 1975, §3-9-2. 

7. Any agent, officer of member of a duly incorporated society for the prevention of 

cruelty to animals may lawfully destroy or cause to be destroyed any animal found 

abandoned and not properly cared for which may appear, in the judgment of two 

reputable citizens called by him to view the same in his presence, to be 

superannuated, infirm, glandered, injured or diseased past recovery for any useful 

propose pursuant to provisions of Code of Alabama, 1975, § 3-1-8.   

 

Section 6. Fines and Punishment. 

Any person violating the provisions of this section shall, upon conviction, be 

punished pursuant to Alabama law.   

 

Section 7. Severability. 

If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 

invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

Section 8. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance Number 2652 shall become effective immediately following adoption 

and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2652 
Page 5 

 
DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 25th day of April, 2016.    

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 

ATTESTED BY:    

 

 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2652 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 25th day of April, 2016, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

 
Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and Vestavia 

Hills Recreational Center this the ___day of ____________, 2016. 
 
 
 
     Rebecca Leavings 
     City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4821 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 4598 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO COMPLETE ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO SECURE PAYMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
NEW CITY HALL FACILITY LOCATED AT 1032 MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 28, 2014, the Mayor and City Council adopted and approved 

Resolution Number 4598 approving an expenditure not to exceed $20,000,000 for construction 

of a new City Hall facility; and 

 WHEREAS, it was noted that this approval did not include such unknown expenditures 

as technology, unforeseen soil problems, utility relocations, required change orders, etc.; and 

 WHEREAS, final invoices are arriving which requires an adjustment into the final 

expenditure approval for the new City Hall Expenses and are detailed in the attached Exhibit A 

which is incorporated into this Resolution Number 4821 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to approve 

the final expenses for said construction. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend an additional $755,778.63 for the final 

construction expenditures of the City Hall facilities; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4821 shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resoluttion No. 4821



Exhibit A - Resoluttion No. 4821



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2653 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2565 PROVIDING 

FOR LEVYING OF MUNICIPAL TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND FOR ASSESSMENT AND 
COLLECTION THEREOF. 

 
WITNESSETH THESE HISTORICAL RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21), which 

consisted of the following amounts: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on each One  $ 0.65 
 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 
 such property. 
 
2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 
 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  
 assessed value of such property. 
 
3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 
 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 
 assessed value of such property. 
 
6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.88 
 School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100 
 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 
 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 
 property. 
   TOTAL $ 8.21 
and; 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 2 

 
 WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the aggregate locally approved millage 

for general municipal purposes and local school taxes of 38.8 mills (being at the rate of 

$3.88 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  10.275 
  Garbage Collection   10.275 
  West Elementary - Warrants    3.150 
  High School and Operations  15.100 
 
     TOTAL 38.800  and; 
 
 WHEREAS, all real property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, has been 

reappraised; and 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Assessor of Jefferson County in 1982 certified to the City 

of Vestavia Hills that total assessed value increased from $42,983,320.00 in 1981 to 

$63,427,627.00 in 1982; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, pursuant to the authority 

granted by Constitutional Amendment Number 373 (Lid Bill) of the Constitution of 

Alabama 1901, adopted Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 1982, which reduced 

the ad valorem tax rate by 7.8 mills ($0.78 per $100.00 of assessed value).  Following the 

enactment of Ordinance Number 633, the total millage rate consisted of the following 

separate taxes: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 
 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 
 such property. 
 
2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 
 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  
 assessed value of such property. 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 3 

 
3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assess value of such property. 
 
4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 
 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 
 assessed value of such property. 
 
6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.10 
 School Taxes:   Three   and   10/100 
 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 
 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 
 property. 
   TOTAL $ 7.43 
 
After the adoption of Ordinance Number 633, the aggregate locally approved millage for 

general municipal purposes and local school district taxes of 31.0 mills (being at the rate 

of $3.10 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  0.821 
  Garbage Collection   0.821 
  West Elementary - Warrants  0.252 
  High School and Operations  1.206 
 
     TOTAL 3.100  and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education unanimously adopted a 

resolution requesting that the ad valorem tax millage for education purposes be returned 

to the pre-November 15, 1982, rates by reinstating the 3.7 mills (.37 per $100.00 of 

assessed value) as follows: 

 West Elementary Warrants from   2.52 to   3.15 
 High School & Operations from 12.06 to 15.10; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said resolution was presented to the City Council on February 4, 

1985; and 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 4 

 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 11, 1985, on the issue of 

whether or not to reinstate the 3.7 mills for the benefit of the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has requested the City 

Council to return the ad valorem millage tax rates that affect the Vestavia Hills School 

System to those rates in force and effective immediately prior to the adoption of 

Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 1982, by reinstating Thirty-Seven Cents 

($0.37) on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of property so that 

the rates when adjusted will be as follows: 

1. The 12.06 High School mills ($1.206 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 
adjusted to 15.1 mills ($1.51 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 
2. The 2.52 West Elementary mills ($0.252 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 

adjusted to 3.15 mills ($0.315 on each $100.00 of assessed value); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, agreed to 

approve the request of the Board of Education by reinstating the 3.7 mills ($0.37 per 

$100.00 of assessed value).  The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 744 on February 18, 1985, which said 

Ordinance provided, among other things, as follows: 

1. Reinstatement of 3.7 mills (0.37 on each One Hundred dollars of assessed value). 
 
2. Established that the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and 

local school district tax rates are Three and 47/100 Dollars ($3.47) per One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of said property. 

 
3. That the $3.47 local millage consists of the following: 
  (a) General Municipal Purposes  0.823 
  (b) Garbage Collection   0.823 
  (c) West Elementary - Warrants  0.315 
  (d) High School and Operations  1.510 
      TOTAL 3.470   and; 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 5 

 
 
4. The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Seven 
and 80/100 Dollars ($7.80) and shall consist of the following: 

 
  State of Alabama   $ 0.65 
  Jefferson County    1.35 
  Jefferson County Schools   0.82 
  Special School District Tax   0.96 
  Special School District Tax   0.55 
  General Municipal Purpose Tax  1.96 
  Special Municipal School Tax  1.51 
 
     TOTAL $ 7.80 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills subsequently desired 

to return the millage tax rates that affect the General Fund to those rates in force and 

effective immediately prior to the adoption of Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 

1982, by reinstating (4.1 mills) forty-one cents on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of the assessed value of property so that the rates when adjusted will be as follows: 

1. The 8.23 General Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 
adjusted to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 
2. The 8.23 Garbage Collection Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed 

value) be adjusted to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 
 
 The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Eight Dollars and 

21 Cents ($8.21) and shall consist of the following: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 
 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of such property. 
 
2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 
 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  
 assessed value of such property. 
 
3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 6 

 
 the assess value of such property. 
 
4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 
 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 
 assessed value of such property. 
 
6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.88 
 School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100 
 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 
 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 
 property. 
   TOTAL $ 8.21 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 4, 1987, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, approved and adopted Ordinance Number 901, which established the ad 

valorem tax rate of Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of assessed value as shown in the schedule immediately above; and 

 WHEREAS, a referendum was held in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on 

Tuesday, May 8, 1990, at which election the qualified electors of the city voted on the 

following issue: 

TEN AND ONE-HALF MILL TAX INCREASE 
IN VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL PURPOSES 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 Shall the ad valorem tax presently being levied in the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, pursuant to provisions of the Constitution and the laws of 
the State of Alabama, including the election held in the City on April 28, 
1970, at the rate of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents on each One Hundred 
Dollars worth of taxable property in the City be increased to the rate of 
Two Dollars and Fifty-six Cents on each One Hundred Dollars worth of 
taxable property in the City (an increase of One Dollar and Five Cents on 
each One Hundred Dollars worth of taxable property, or ten and one-half 
mills); such additional ten and one-half mill tax to be levied and collected 
for each year beginning with the levy for the tax year October 1, 1989, to 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 7 

 
September, 1990 (the tax for which year will be due and payable October 
1, 1990) and ending with the levy for the tax October 1, 2016, to 
September 30, 2017 (the tax for which year will be due and payable 
October 1, 2017) and to be used by the City Board of Education of the 
City of Vestavia Hills for public schools purposes? 

 
  _____________ For Proposed Taxation 
 
  _____________ Against Proposed Taxation 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

 The majority of the qualified electors voted “For Proposed Taxation”.  The 
specific totals were: 

 
For Proposed Taxation 3,097 
Against Proposed Taxation 3,065 

 
 Following the referendum vote on May 8, 1990, the aggregate ad valorem tax rate 

on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26) 

and consisted of the following millages: 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 
2.  Jefferson County    1.350 
3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 
4.  Special School District Tax   0.960 
5.  Special School District Tax   0.550 
6.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 
7.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
8.  West Elementary    0.315 
 
     TOTAL $ 9.260 
 
 On August 27, 1991, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 8.2 mill Jefferson County School ad valorem tax. 

 On April 28, 1992, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 5.5 mill Special School District ad valorem tax. 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 8 

 
 On May 3, 1993, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 1353, levying ad valorem taxes at the rate of 

$9.26 per $100.00 of assessed value on real and personal property located within the City 

for the period beginning October 1, 1993, and ending September 30, 1994. 

 On October 26, 1993, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of a 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax (under Section 2 of 

Amendment 3, sometimes referred to as Amendment Number 3, Three Mill District Tax) 

to 15.1 mills. 

 Because of the 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax to 15.1 mills, the 

9.6 mill ad valorem tax authorized by Amendment Number 82 of the Constitution of the 

State of Alabama was not renewed. 

 On March 11, 2014, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of renewing the levy of the said 10.5 mill tax commencing with the tax year for 

which taxes will become due and payable on October 1, 2018 and for each consecutive 

tax year thereafter without limit as to time. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:   Taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October 2016, on all real and personal property and 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed 

for County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax 

year ending on the 30th day of September, 2017, as follows: 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 9 

 
A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each 

One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 
 
B. A tax for public school purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 
 
C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and local 

school district tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 
D. The local millage, for City accounting purposes, shall be allocated as follows: 
 
  General Municipal Purposes   1.0275 
  Garbage Collection    1.0275 
  West Elementary - Warrants     .3150 
  High School and Board Operations  2.5600 
 
      TOTAL 4.9300 
 
 SECTION TWO - SPECIAL DISTRICT TAXES:  In addition to the taxes 

levied in SECTION ONE above, taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the 1st day of October, 2016, on all real and personal property and other 

properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by 

the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending on the 30th day of September, 2017, as follows: 

A. A further tax of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents ($1.51) of each One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property, in addition to the above 
mentioned taxes to be applied exclusively to public school purposes pursuant to 
the authority conferred by the Constitution and the election held on February 11, 
1969; renewed on April 28, 1992, and increased to 15.1 mills on October 26, 
1993. 

 
B. A further tax of Eighty-two Cents ($0.82) of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of the assessed value of such property, to be used solely and only for public 
school purposes pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Alabama. 

 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 10 

 
 Should the City Council of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, have no legal authority to 

provide for the levy, assessment and collection of the said Special School District Taxes 

as described in this SECTION TWO, then in such event, this SECTION TWO shall be 

considered as the City’s support of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education. 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2016, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2016, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND 

THEIR COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Jefferson County, 

Alabama, shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this 

service in assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent 

to one-half of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 2653, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 11 

 
 SECTION SEVEN - SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are 

hereby declared severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the 

invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION EIGHT - INTENT:  It is the intent of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, with the passage of this Ordinance Number 2653, that the aggregate local 

millage for general municipal purposes and local school district tax rates be Four and 

93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such 

property and consist of the following: 

 Special High School Tax and Operations  $ 2.560 
 General Municipal Including Garbage   2.055 
 West Elementary        .315 
 
      TOTAL $ 4.930 
 
 It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, shall amount to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26), which shall consist 

of the following millages: 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 
2.  Jefferson County    1.350 
3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 
4.  Special School District Tax   1.510 
5.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 
6.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
7.  West Elementary    0.315 
 
     TOTAL $ 9.260 
 
 SECTION NINE - TAX ABATEMENT:  Whereas, the City of Vestavia Hills 

has annexed no parcels of land with tax abatements. 

 



Ordinance Number 2653 
Page 12 

 
 SECTION 10 - EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption and approval and is adopted and approved all in 

accordance with Title 11-51-40, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2653 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 25th day of April, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2654 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2654 
 
 AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LEVYING OF 

MUNICIPAL TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND FOR 
ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION THEREOF IN 
SHELBY COUNTY. 

 
  NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:  Taxes are levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October, 2016, on all real and personal property and 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed 

for State taxation as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending during the preceding year, as follows: 

A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each 

One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property; 

B. A tax for Public School purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property; 

C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general Municipal purposes and 

Municipal School tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred 

($100.00) of the value of such property; 

D. The local millage for the City’s accounting purposes shall be allocated as follows: 

   General Municipal Purposes   1.0275 
   Garbage Collection    1.0275 
   West Elementary Warrants   0.3150 
  High School and Board Operations  2.5600 
 
     Total   4.9300 



Ordinance Number 2654 
Page 2 

 
 

  SECTION TWO - SHELBY TAX LEVY:  Taxes are hereby levied byl 

the Shelby County Commission §40-7-42, Code of Alabama, 1975 for the City tax year 

commencing on the first day of October, 2015, on all real and personal property and other 

properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by 

the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending on the 30th day of September, 2017, as follows: 

A. A tax of Fifty Cents ($0.50) on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the value 

of such property for general fund purposes; 

B. A tax of One Dollar and Sixty Cents ($1.60) on each One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) of the value of such property for school districts; 

C. A tax of Twenty-five Cents ($0.25) for each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of 

the value of such property for roads and bridges; 

D. In summary, the aggregate County millage for general purposes, countywide 

school taxes, and road and bridges is Two and 35/100 Dollars ($2.35) per One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the value of such property. 

  It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Shelby County, Alabama, should amount to Seven and 93/100 Dollars ($7.93) which 

shall consist of the following millages: 

  State of Alabama    0.650 
  Shelby County     0.500 
  Shelby County School Countywide  1.600 
  Shelby County Road and Bridge  0.250 



Ordinance Number 2654 
Page 3 

 
  General Municipal Purpose Tax  2.055 
  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
  West Elementary Warrants   0.315 
 
      Total  7.930 
 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2016, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2016, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND 

THEIR COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Shelby County, 

Alabama, shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this 

service in assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent 

to one-half of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 2654, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 

 



Ordinance Number 2654 
Page 4 

 
  SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared 

severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the invalidity thereof 

shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption and approval. 

  ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2496 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 25th day of April, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4825 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4825 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER OF 

THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR A TERM OF FIVE YEARS  

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 11-16-3, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall appoint members of the City Board of Education to serve for a term of five 

(5) years; and  

 WHEREAS, the five-year term of Nat Robin as a member of the Vestavia Hills 

Board of Education expires at 6:00 PM on June 22, 2016 and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1.  The City Council does hereby elect and appoint ___________________ as a 

member of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education for a term of five (5) years, beginning 

with the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education in 

June at 6:00 p.m. and ending at 6:00 p.m. on the date of the first regularly scheduled 

meeting of the Board in June of the year 2021; and 

 2.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the approval and adoption by the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 RESOLVED, DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 

25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number 4825 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4817-A 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 4817 - 
APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL $24,000 FOR MOWING OF THE 
FORMER ALTADENA VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB 

 
WHEREAS, on March 23, 2015, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4688 to accept a bid for right-of-way mowing in the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of March, 2016, the City Council approved and adopted 

Resolution Number 4817 to accept a bid from Turf Management for a period of three (3) years; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution Number 4817 authorized the addition of Turf Management’s 

bid of the Altadena Valley Country Club at a cost not to exceed “$2,000 per month through the 

end of September 2016 (total of $24,000)” and the actual cost is $2,000 per cut for a total not to 

exceed $24,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The addition of the acreage known as the former Altadena Valley Country Club is hereby 

added to the Turf Management agreement pursuant to the bid submitted at a cost not to 

exceed $2,000 per cut through the end of September 2016 (total of $24,000); and 

2. This Resolution Number 4817 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016, 

 
 
 
 

Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exh
ibi

t 

Res
olu

tio
n 

No. 
48

17
-A

Resolution Number 4817 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4817 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL $24,000 FOR 
MOWING OF THE FORMER ALTADENA VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 23, 2015, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4688 to accept a bid for right-of-way mowing in the City of Vestavia Hills; and  

WHEREAS, Turf Management was awarded said contract for a period of three (3) years; 

and 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the contract allows for the addition and/or deletion of certain 

areas for mowing; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has determined a need for mowing services 

within the former Altadena Valley Country Club areas that were recently donated to the City; 

and 

WHEREAS, the addition of this property would cost the City an estimated $2,000 per 

month to maintain until the end of the fiscal year, September 2016, for a total not to exceed 

$24,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept 

said request for maintenance by Turf Management of the former Altadena Valley Country Club. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The addition of the acreage known as the former Altadena Valley Country Club is hereby 

added to the Turf Management agreement pursuant to the bid submitted at a cost not to 

exceed $2,000 per month through the end of September 2016 (total of $24,000); and 

2. This Resolution Number 4817 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 2016, 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 



Exh
ibi

t 

Res
olu

tio
n 

No. 
48

17
-A

1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Tuesday, March 15, 2016 4:11 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: First Read on next agenda
Attachments: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer.pdf

Becky, we need to add cutting of AVCC 2 times per month starting in April and ending in September for $24,000 total 
($2000 per cut).  This will be on our contract with Turf Management, which allows us to add and subtract areas as 
needed.  I have attached the contract. 
 
Please add for a first read on the agenda at the next meeting with an approval at the first meeting in April.   
 
Thank you in advance.  Please let me know if you need anything else. 
 
"The pessimist sees difficulty in every opportunity.  The optimist sees opportunity in every difficulty." 
Winston Churchill 
 

 
 
Brian C. Davis, Director 
Department of Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 

   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4817



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4822 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE USE OF ELECTRONIC VOTE 
COUNTING DEVICES FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 7 of Title 17 of the Alabama Code of 1975, and the regulations 

adopted pursuant thereto by the Alabama Electronic Voting Committee, provide for the use of 

Electronic Vote Counting Systems; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 17-7-21 of the Code of Alabama of 1975 provides that a 

municipality may, in its discretion, by adoption of an appropriate resolution, authorize, adopt and 

direct the use of electronic vote counting systems for us in all elections held in such 

municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills desires to utilize, by agreement, voting tabulators 

described as ES&S DS-200 Ballot Tabulators owned by Jefferson County, Alabama for all 

municipal elections. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. For all municipal elections held subsequent to the passage of this Resolution Number 

4822, the use of ES&S DS-200 Ballot Tabulators, a system which complies with Section 

17-7-21 of the Code of Alabama, 1975 and any regulations adopted pursuant thereto, is 

hereby authorized for reporting, counting, and tabulating of any and all municipal 

election results; and 

2. The Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills is hereby directed to file a copy of this 

Resolution Number 4822 with the Secretary of State as provided in Section 17-7-21 of 

the Code of Alabama of 1975; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4822 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4823 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4823 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4823 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 25th day of 

April, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 10:08 AM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Bobby Mcdaniel
Subject: surplus

Please add a utility trailer manufactured by Crosley trailers to the surplus list for the first available council meeting.  The 
VIN # CTL816C53TS007182 but there is no asset number.   
 
 
 
"The pessimist sees difficulty in every opportunity.  The optimist sees opportunity in every difficulty." 
Winston Churchill 
 

 
 
Brian C. Davis, Director 
Department of Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 

   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4823



                                                                                                                                                    4/19/16 

 

 

To: Rebecca Leavings 

From: Sgt. Gaston, Officer Wilson 

Re: Surplus City Property 

 

 

      Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 

 

• 2010 Ford Crown Vic Vin # 2FABP7BV1AX113857 
• 2005 Ford Crown Vic Vin # 2FAFP71W05X160914 
• 2004 Ford Crown Vic Vin # 2FAFP71W84X116030 
• 2008 Ford Crown Vic Vin # 2FAHP71V98X141654 
• 2005 Ford Crown Vic Vin # 2FAFP71W85X160918 
• 2007 Dodge Durango Vin # 1D8HD38P27F573825 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

 

                                                                 Thanks,   Sgt. Gaston       ext.#1137 

                   Officer Wilson   ext.#1110 

 

                            

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4823



Resolution Number 4824 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4824 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama Power 

Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said 

agreement (copy attached); and 

2. Resolution Number 4824 shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4824



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4824



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4824



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4824



Resolution Number 4826 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4826 
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING THE REZONING OF 1280 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY FROM UNZONED TO VESTAVIA 
HILLS B-2 (BUSINESS DISTRICT) 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016, the Mayor and City Manager executed and 

delivered an agreement with BAMA 3-RE, LLC to sell a tract of land of approximately 

2.34 acres, more or less, located at 1280 Montgomery Highway (hereinafter referred to as 

“Property”) a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit B” attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 4826 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, a condition of the agreement was that the City would file a petition 

requesting the rezoning of said property from its current unknown zoning classification to 

VH B-2 with restrictions for the construction of a small business district; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

initiate the request to rezone the property located at 1280 Montgomery Highway from the 

current unknown zoning classification to Vestavia Hills B-2 (business district) 

substantially as depicted in the site drawing marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4826; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to file this Resolution Number 4826 to 

rezone the Property from Unknown to Vestavia Hills B-2 (business district) 

with restrictions; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4826 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



Resolution Number 4826 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4826



Resolution Number 4827 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4827 

 
A RESOLUTION INITIATING A REQUEST FOR CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR HEAVY MECHANICAL FOR A PORTION OF LOT 1, 
VESTAVIA HILLS SPORTS PARK FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A CITY 
FLEET OPEATIONS FACILITY 

 
 WHEREAS, Lot 1 Vestavia Sports Park is located within the Liberty Park P.U.D. in an 

area designated as PR-1 for recreational park use; and 

 WHEREAS, a portion of Lot 1, Vestavia Sports Park is located adjacent to Sicard 

Hollow Road and is currently utilized as a park maintenance facility; a diagram of said location 

is detailed on a map marked as “Exhibit A” which is attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4827 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills desires to construct a new Fleet Operations 

Facility for the maintenance and repair of all City vehicles on the above-described portion of Lot 

1, Vestavia Sports Park (“the Subject Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, said use for a Fleet Operations Facility on this property requires the 

approval of a Conditional Use pursuant to the zoning of the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City of Vestavia Hills shall request a conditional use approval for “major 

mechanical” for the property detailed in the attached Exhibit and referred to as “the 

Subject Property”; and 

2. The City Clerk shall file this Resolution Number 4827 to serve as a petition with the City 

Planner in order to begin said process to request a Conditional Use approval; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4827 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number 4827 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4827



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4828 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR PROJECT NUMBER 
ACAA59494-ATRP(006); ATRIP #37-03-33 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through 

the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

The resurfacing on CR-99 (Columbiana Road), CR-42 (Tyler Road), and CR-2336 

(Overton Road).  Length – 1.71 miles 

Project # ACAA59494-ATRP(006); ATRIP #37-03-33 

2. That the agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its City Manager, for and on 

its behalf; and 

3. That the agreement be attested by the City Clerk and seal of the City affixed thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon the completion of the execution of the 

agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 25th 
day of April, 2016, and that such Resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
County on this ________ day of _________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4828



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4829 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR PROJECT CMAQ-
7030(600), PROJECT REFERENCE NUMBER 100057174; 
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT FOR SIDEWALKS ALONG PORTIONS OF 
MASSEY ROAD, COLUMBIANA ROAD AND MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through 

the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Project CMAQ-7030(600), Project Reference Number 100057174, Construction 

project for sidewalks along CR-42 (Massey Road) from AL-3 (US-31, Montgomery 

Highway) to CR-99 (Columbiana Road) in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 

which Agreement is before this Council; and 

2. That the agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its City Manager, for and on 

its behalf and that it be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed thereto; 

and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon the completion of the execution of the 

agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 25th 
day of April, 2016, and that such Resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
County on this ________ day of _________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4829



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4830 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT A 
PROPOSAL TO DESIGN A MOTOR SCOUT BUILDING FOR THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept a proposal from Williams Blackstock 

for design of a motor scout building for the City of Vestavia Hills Police Department at a 

cost not to exceed $20,800 ($19,800 plus $1,000 travel/misc. expenses); and 

2. A copy of said proposal is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4830 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4830 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of May, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
     Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
     Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



WI L L I A M S  •   BLA CK ST O CK  

A R C H I T E C T S  

 

 

April 20, 2016 

 

 

Christopher Brady 

City of Vestavia Hills 

1032 Montgomery Hwy 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

 

 

Re:    Vestavia Hills Motor Scout Building – Proposal for Architectural/Engineering Services 

 

 

Christopher,    

 

We really appreciate this opportunity to work with the City of Vestavia Hills to relocate the Motor Scout 

storage facility to the City Hall and Police Department grounds in an effort to better streamline City 

services.  We have prepared this proposal for architectural and engineering services for this building 

design based on our discussions concerning scope and overall vision for the building to blend in with the 

new City Hall aesthetic. 

 

SCOPE  

We understand the scope of this project is to construct a new storage and reporting facility for Motor 

Scout division of the Vestavia Hills Police Department.  This facility will primarily consist of a storage 

room for motorcycles with overhead door access and a storage room for supplies.  This space will be 

used for storage and routine maintenance of the vehicles.  The building will also include office space and 

a reporting room for the patrols.   

 

The building will be located in a triangular area of unoccupied land on the City Hall site immediately 

north of the secured/fenced parking area, and access will be provided from the secured parking area. 

 

The building will be roughly 800 to 850 square feet and be used for routine, light maintenance and will 

not include water or toilets due to the proximity of the existing facilities, and also due to likely high cost 

for extending water and sanitary sewer utilities to this area.  The building office space will be 

conditioned at a minimum, with the storage/maintenance space being heated and vented at a 

minimum.  The facility will need power and data from the existing facility so they are tied together. 

 

Based on preliminary information we anticipate this facility and affected site work to be in the $100,000 

to $150,000 cost range. 

 

 

SCHEDULE 

We will work as quickly as you need us to in order to meet your schedule needs. 

 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4830



Vestavia Hills Motor Scout Building – Proposal for Architectural/Engineering Services 

April 20, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

SERVICES 

Our services will include the normal architectural services, as well as civil site design, mechanical and 

electrical engineering services.  Our services will include preliminary and final drawing reviews with the 

appropriate City officials and stakeholders.  At this time we anticipate the project will be bid to general 

contractors and we our services will include bidding and construction administration services. 

 

 

 

COMPENSATION 

We propose to provide these services outlined above for schematic design through construction 

administration (from beginning to end) on a lump sum basis for $19,800. 

 

We propose to invoice for these services on a monthly basis as work is completed. 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Additional Services are services outside the scope of Basic Services or services that are unanticipated or 

may typically be provided by the Owner.   We will provide these services if requested or approved by 

you in advance.  The fee for additional services, if required will be a lump sum fee negotiated for the 

scope of work or on an hourly basis per the attached hourly rates.  Additional services by our 

consultants will be invoiced at 1.2 times direct cost.   Additional services that could possibly be required 

may include, but are not limited to the following: 

 

• Geotechnical and environmental engineering, or studies  (anticipate to use recent report) 

• Construction Materials Testing     (anticipate by Owner) 

• ADEM NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit  (need not anticipated)  

• ADEM Permit       (need not anticipated)  

• Major design changes after Owner approval of design  (need not anticipated) 

• LEED Certification      (need not anticipated) 

• Major Roadway and/or Utility redevelopment    (need not anticipated)  

 

 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES    

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation incurred by the Architect and its consultants in 

the interest of the Project and include drawing reproductions, postage, delivery, long distance 

communications, renderings, etc.  Reimbursable expenses will be billed monthly at a multiple of 1.20 

times the expenses incurred.  We would be willing to provide a cap on reimbursable expenses with a 

lump sum amount upon request.      

 

 

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to provide you with this proposal and really want to work with 

you.  If our assumptions about the scope of work are not quite correct please let us know and we can 

revisit the work scope and related fee to ensure you can provide you with the most effective services 

and value. 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4830



Vestavia Hills Motor Scout Building – Proposal for Architectural/Engineering Services 

April 20, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

If after review you find this proposal acceptable, please indicate by signing below and we will formalize 

our agreement with a standard AIA (American Institute of Architects) Agreement between Owner 

Architect.   If you have any questions, or if we can be of further service, please do not hesitate to call.   

 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Stephen Allen 

 

 

 

 

Accepted by:    _____________________________ 

 

Date:   _____________________________ 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4830



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4831 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT A 
PROPOSAL TO DESIGN A MUNICIPAL FLEET OPERATIONS 
FACILITY AT LOT 1, VESTAVIA SPORTS PARK; LIBERTY PARK 
ATHLETIC COMPLEX AND RENOVATIONS AT THE PARK 
MAINTENANCE FACILITY AT WALD PARK 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept a proposal from Volkert, Inc., for design 

of a municipal fleet operations facility for the City of Vestavia Hills and for renovations 

of the Park Maintenance Facility at Wald Park at a cost not to exceed $189,400 

($184,400 plus $5,000 bid /misc. expenses); and 

2. A copy of said proposal is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4831 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4831 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of May, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
     Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
     Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



 
 

 
 
 

April 22, 2016 

Volkert, Inc. 
Two North Twentieth Building 
2 20th Street North, Suite 300 

Birmingham, AL 35203 
 

Office 205.214.5500 
Fax 205.214.5501 

birmingham@volkert.com 
 

www.volkert.com 

 

 
 

Mr. Christopher Brady 
City Engineer, Public Service Department 
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
 
RE:  Proposal for Design Services 

Public Works Improvements at Wald Park and New Municipal Fleet Operations Facility at 
Sicard Hollow Road 

 
Dear Mr. Brady: 
 
Please find herein Volkert Inc.’s proposal to perform certain professional and engineering design services 
as requested by the City for the following two (2) sites: 

 Design of improvements to repurpose the existing public works facility and construct a new 3,000 
square foot (SF) building at Wald Park to house facilities for Public Works and Parks and 
Recreation.  The new building will be conventional construction. 

 Design of a new municipal fleet operations facility located along Sicard Hollow Road at Liberty 
Park.  The building shall a pre-engineered metal building with a conventional façade and shall be 
approximately 6,400 SF with three (3) drive through bays and other support facilities.   
 

The scope of services proposed to complete this project is summarized herein below. 
 
A. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 Conduct a project kick-off meeting to discuss project details, schedule, and confirm City’s goals 
and objectives. 
 

 Preliminary Engineering/Design and Programming: 
o Boundary survey and topographic survey, including location of existing utilities, for both sites.  

Assist with rezoning documentation and proceedings. 
o Subsurface evaluation of both sites, including test pit excavations and rock core borings in 

planned cut areas (Wald Park) and soil borings. 
o Hazardous materials assessment at the existing facility located at the Sicard Hollow Road site. 
o Programming and preliminary plan layout for each facility 
o Site layout, drainage, and utility plans 

 

 Final Design Engineering and Plan Preparation 
o Final site design include grading, drainage, utilities, and erosion control. 
o Final Architectural, including structural and MEP services. 
o Preparation of final plans and specifications for bidding 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4831



 
 

 
 

Page 2  
Christopher Brady  

April 22, 2016 
 
 
 

 

 

 Development of a final construction estimate 

 QA/QC to include conformance of documents and constructability review 
 
This proposal includes time for coordination of the Fleet Operations Facility with the Sicard Hollow 
Pedestrian Tunnel design.  We anticipate some revisions required to the tunnel design to account for 
CCTV/lighting and general site grading/layout that will integrate with the operations facility/site. 
 
Additionally, the proposal includes time for attending three (3) project meetings for design programming, 
review, and assistance communicating the improvements to the City Council and public. 
 
B. SCHEDULE - Work will be scheduled upon receipt of authorization with a goal of overall project 
completion (beneficial occupancy of facilities) no later than April 2017.  Volkert shall provide the design 
resources required to meet the determined design schedule. 
 
C. FEE – The Lump Sum Fee for Engineering Services shall be $184,400.  Fee does not include time 
for Bid Period Services or Construction Engineering and Inspection services.  Bid Period Services from 
advertisement to award of a construction contract shall be hourly and per Volkert’s standard and current 
hourly rates, not to exceed $5,000 plus reimbursables without approval from the City.  Construction 
Period Services shall be added by supplemental agreement.  Fees will be billed monthly based on the 
Engineer’s estimate of services completed.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to work with the City. Please call me with any questions or concerns you 
have.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kirk Mills, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
CC:  Mr. Brian Davis, PE 

Mrs. Lori Beth Kearley, PE 
Mr. Rob Vermillion 
Mr. John Smith 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4831


	2016_0425CC_A
	Presentation Child Care Res
	Presentation Norris
	2016_0411CC_M
	2016_0418CC_special mtg
	Ordinance 2652
	Resolution 4821
	Ordinance 2653
	Ordinance 2654
	Resolution 4825
	Resolution 4817a
	Resolution 4822
	Resolution 4823
	Resolution 4824
	Resolution 4826
	Resolution 4827
	Resolution 4828
	Resolution 4829
	Resolution 4830
	Resolution 4831



